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This is Global Limited

Group Strategic Report

The directors present their strategic report for This 1s Global Limited and its subsidiaries {the "Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2016

Principal activity

The Group's principal activity during the year was the operation of commeraial radio stations i the United Kingdom

Business raview

This business review gives greater emphasis to those matters which are significant to This 1s Global Limited (the
"Company”) and Hs subsidary undertakings when viewed as a whole

The year ended 31 March 2016 was the seventh consecutive year of growth in profitability for the Group with
adjusted EBITDA of £74 5m (as defined in note 2 beiow), showing growth of over 2 8% on the prior year's figure of
£72 4m Operating margin fell from 27 3% to 27 0%

The mam reason for the increase 1n profitability was the 4 8% growth 1n our commercial revenues n the year,
which includes six months' revenuas from the acquisition of Jutce FM in Liverpool Our commercial revenues also
continued to outperform the wider market For the penod from 1 Aprit 2015 te 31 March 2016 our commercial
revenues increased by 3 9% on a like for fike basis, whereas the market increased by 3 1% in that same penod
{source Radiocentire website)

During the year, Global's radio stations achieved an average weekly audience of 23 8 milllon hsteners (source
RAJAR Q2 2015 — Q1 2016 average) This compares to last year's audience of 23 1 million listeners and refiects

the continuing quaiity and populanty of our stations QOur stations reached 45% of the UK population on a weekly
basts

Global's Make Soms Neise charity continued to raise money for disadvantaged children and young pecple and to
give a voice to smaller chanites that find t hard to get heard Make Some Noise raised over £2 6m (2015 £2 3m)
m the year, and awarded grants to more than 40 charities and projects across the UK

In Septamber 2015 we launched a brand new national channel, Radio X Fsaturng Chns Moyles, Johnny Vaughan
and Ricky Wilscn, Radio X aims to bnng listeners the best fresh rock and guitar-basad music across the UK

In October 2015, we started construction of the new Glabal Academy, a university technica! college to provide
academic and vocational training for students who want tc work in the broadcast and digital media industries The
Global Acadamy will open for the start of the next academic year, in September 2016

In January 2018, we brought tha UK's number 1 hit music staton te Liverpool, with the launch of 107 & Capital FM
Liverpoal Capital Liverpool will play the biggest hits from the hottest hit music artists of the moment The launch of
Capital Livarpool followed our purchase of Juice FM from UTV

Wa continued to expand our Digital Audio Exchange (“DAX") following the success of its launch last year DAX
gives advertisers a single buying point to access the digital audio market We have now expanded the service
across 18 European counties and more than 150 audio platforms are offanng ther advartising via DAX

The directors noted that the strong financial performance, combined with the continued high quality programming
output of our stations and significant progress on a number of strategic objectives, represented another extremely
successful year for the Group

Durning the year £49,166,980 of loans wera converted fo 49,166,880 ordinary £1 shares which were 1ssued, called
up and fully pald :

.

Financial performance

The consolidated income statement 1s set out on page 9 and shows revenus for the year ended 31 March 2016 of
£276 2m, an increase of 4 1% on last year's figure of £2652m Operating profit of £60 im rose by £3 6m
compared to last year's figure of £56 5m Operating profit 1s stated after charging depreciatien of £4 1m (2015
£3 9m) and amortisation of £5 4m (2015 £2 7m)} The loss before taxation of £0 8m (2016 £35 8m) has decreased
mainty due to movemants in the fair value of the loans and nterest on shareholder and other loans

The directors consider that adjusted EBITDA (as defined In nots 2 below) represents a key measure of the
business performance as it demonstrates the underlying trading performance The results for the year set out
below show growth of £2 1m (3.0%) = adjusted EBITDA from £72 4m n 2015 to £74 5m for the year ended 31
March 2016 )




This is Global Limited

Group Strategic Report (continued)

Financlal performance (continued)

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2016

£m £m
Commercial revenue 2547 2436
Other revenue 215 2186
Total reventue 2762 285 2
Direct cosis 487 505
Gross profit 226 5 214 7
Other operating costs (nate 1) 1520 1423
Adjusted EBITDA (note 2) 745 724
Operating margin 27 0% 273%

Note 1 Direct costs exclude depreciation, emortisation and charges or credits relating to non-recurnng items
including restructuring and integration costs such as launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and
vacant property provisions

Note 2 Adjusted EBITDA comprises earnings before mnterest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and 15 stated
before any charges or crodits ralating to non-recurnng 1tems including restructuring and \ntegraton costs such as
launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and vacant property provisions

Going concern

The directors confirm that, efter making enquines, they have a reasconable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing these financial statements Further information around
the assessment of going concern can be found on note 1 of the financial statements

Future developmaents

The directors believe that the current level of actwity will conbinue for the foreseeable future ana:i they look forward
to a retumn to stable growth in the UK market The directors continue to explore a number of opportunities to grow
and axpand the existing business

Principal risks and unceriainties

The principal nsks faced by the business can be divided into operational, commercial, financial and credit nsks
The nsks are monitored and managed at a Group level and by local managament teams

Operational risk

Audience levels at the Group's stations could erode the Group's position, both in local markets and in the natonal
marketplace if they were to dechne To address this, the Group markets its radio brands regularly and continuaily
strives to improve programming standards to increase audiences The Group carnes out research on its listeners,
building profites of their likes and dishkes, and uses this to develop both the sound of the stations, and the music
they play

Commercial risk

There 18 a risk that weakness in the advertising market could put pressure on traditicnal revenus streams To
address this, the Group has bean developing i3 relationship with advertisers and agencies to énsure that the value
of its brands Is fully realised This includes offering talered solutions to advertisers and highlighting the breadth of
our products The developmant of new media opportunitias 18 at the heart of the Group's strategy, which over tme
will reduce the pressure on our traditional revenus genaralors

Whiist the mpact of the Umited Kingdom leaving the Eurcpean Union 15 uncertan and hard to assess, based on
current UK growth forecasts there 1s a risk that our revenues will be lower than forecast In additon, there are other
ralated factors which affect the Group, for example, the impact of a tougher UK business environment on interest
rates and therefore long-term bond ytelds and the group panston liabities

Financlal risk

The Group is primanly fundsd by both related party and bank debt Bank debt has been raduced in the year The
Group's operations ara cash-generative, and general exposurd to liguidity nisk s considerad to be low The Group
montors performance against its banking covenanis on a quarterly basis
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Group Strategic Report (continued)
Crodit risk

The Group actvely mitigates the nisk of payment default by its customers by the use of trade credit nsurance and
by reviewing outstanding payments and provisions for paymant default regularly

Key performance Indlcators

‘The bustness uses key performance indicators which are monitored on a regular basis and include audienca trends
euch as weekly reach, histering hours, share of the market and demographic mix, as well as financial indicaters
such as revenua, adjusted EBITDA and operating margins Variance analysis 1s performed monthiy and vanances
are menitored and discussad within a formal meeting structure

This report was approved by the baard and signed on its behalf by

026y~

Directer
28 July 2018




This is Giobal Limited

Directors’ Report

The directors present the directors’ report and the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2016

Results and dividends

The loss for the year, after taxabon and non-controlling interests, amounted to £7 9m (2015 loss of £32 5m) The
directers do not recommend the payment cf & dindend (2015; £nil)

Directors
The directors who served during the year and to the date of this report were

Lord Alien of Kensington CBE (Chairman)
A D Tabor

SG Miron

RFJ Park

M D Connole (resigned 14 August 2015)
M Gordon

W Harding

I L. Hanson

D D Singer (appointed 9 November 2015)

Political and charitable contributions

The Group is involved with a2 number of chanties that are inked to its radio operations and during the course of
the financial year, the Group's chanties were involved in fundraising activities which generated £3 2m (2015
£3 9m) for its own and many other third-party causes

As well as providing significant radio artime to promote the achvihes and events of its chanties, the Group
provides a number of services to these chanbes, including the use of offices and administration services, free of
charge

Tha Group's donations to external chanties amounted to £50,124 (2015 £127,697) No contributions were made
to poliical orgarisations  The chantable and pahtical donations of the Company amounted to £nil (2015 £nil)

Future developments

The directors beheve that the current level of actvity will contihue for the foreseeabis future and they look forward
to a return to stable growth in the UK advertising market, notwithstanding the uncertain Impact of the UK exiting
the European Union The directors continue 1o explore a number of opportunities to grow and expand the
existing business.

Financlal instruments

The Group's risk management process and the policies for mitigating certain type of risks are set cut m note 20
Detalls of the financial instruments used for these purpeses are In note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements

Employes involvement

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its people and has continued to keep them informed
on matters affecting their employmaent and on the various factors affecting the parformance of the Group and the
Company This 15 achieved through formal and informal meetings Employee representatives are consulted
regularly on a wide range of matters affecting therr current and future interests

Disabled employees

Applications for employment from disabled persons are always fully considerad, beanng in mmd the abilittes of
the apphcant concerned  As a people focused business we make sure that we recruit the nght person for the job
every time, whatever their background

In the event of 8 member of staff becoming disabled every effort 13 made to ensure that ther employment with the
Group continues and that appropriate adjustments are made It is the palicy of the Group and the Company that
the training, caresr development and promation of disabled persons shoukd, as far as possible, be dentical to
that of other employees
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Directors’ Report {continued)
Qualifying third party Indemnity provistons

The directors benefit from qualifying third party indemruty provisions in place The Group also prowided qualifying
third party indemnity provisions to certain directors of associated comparues during the financial year

Matterg covared in the strategic report

Details of the principal nsks faced by the Group, including operational nsk, credit nsk and liquidity nsk are
discussed in the Group Strategic Report

Provision of information to the auditor
Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors' Report 1s approved has confirmed that
s so far as that each director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group and the
Company's auditor |s unaware, and

¢ that each director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a diractor in order to be aware

of any ralevant audit information and to establish that the Group and the Company's auditor is aware of
that nformation

Auditor

Under section 487(2) of tha Compamnies Act 2008, Deloitte LLP wili be deemed to have been resppointed as
audior 28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latast date prescribed
for filng the accounts with the registrar, whichever s earlier

This report was approved Dy the board and signed on its behalf by

0 S
D.D Singer

Director
28 July 2018




This is Global Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responstble for prepanng the strategic report, directors' report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law raquires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financtal year Under that law the
directors have electad to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intermnationat Financial
Raporting Standards as adopted by the European Umon (TIFRS"), and the Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (‘UK GAAP') and applicable law
Undar company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless thay are satisfied that they

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that year

In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are reguired to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make Judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether the group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and the Company
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s lnappropnate to prosume that the
Company will continue in busingss

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explamn the
Company's transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positon of the Company
and enable them {o ansura that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responstble for safeguarding the assets of tha Company and hence for faking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Directors’ statement as to the disclosure of information to auditors

All of the current directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have teken to make themseives aware of
any information needed by the Company's auditors for the purposes of their audit and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information The directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unaware
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of This is Global Limited

Wa have audited the financiat statements of This 15 Global Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement of
Financial Position, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group Statement of Cash Flows, the Parent
Company Balance Sheet and the Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 38
The financial reporting framework that has been appled in the preparation of the group financial statements 13
applicable law and International Financtal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union  The
financial reporting framework that has been applted in the preparation of tha parent company financial statements
is appiicable law and Unitad Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accapted Accounting
Practice), tncluding FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken $0 that we might state to the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor's report and for no other purpese To the fullest
axtant permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibllities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satsfied that they give a true and far view Our
responsbility Is to audit and express an opiion on the financial statements In accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing {UK and leland) Those standards require us to comply wath the
Auditing Practices Beard's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtammg evidence about the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from materal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error  This includes an assessment of whethar the accounting pohcies are appropriate to the Group's
and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently apphied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements [n addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to
wentfy material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that 1s
apparantly matenally mcorrect based on, or matenatly inconsistant with, the knowtedge acquired by us mn the
course of parforming the audit  If we bacome aware of any apparent matanal misstatements or inconsistencias
we consider the implications for our report

Oplnlon on financlal statements

In our opinton

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

. the group financial staterments have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the Eurcpean Union,

. the parent company financial statements have been propetly prepared in accordance with Unied
Kingdom Generally Acceptad Accounting Practice, and

- the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with lhe requrements of the Companies Act
2008

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our optruan the information given in the Group Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared I1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companias Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

we hava not received all the information and explanations wa require for our audit

M. C. Loa- Rartat

Mark Lee-Amies FCA (Senior Statutory Auditar)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

29 July 2016




This Is Global Limited

Group Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Revanue

Durect costs

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating profit

Finance income
Finance expanse

Net finance costs

Share of profit of equity-accounted investass, nat of tax

Loss baefore taxation
Incame tax credit
Loss for the year
Arributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
Note £000 £'000
2 276,247 265,165
(49.714) {50.513)
228,533 214,682
(166,410) (158,167)
4 60,123 56,515
7 1,837 2,037
8 (72,301) (94,978}
(70,884} (92,941)
672 583
(9,869) (35,843)
9 1,943 3,331
(7,926) (32.512)
(9,103) (33,6819)
1,177 1,107
(7,928) (32,512)

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

.




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Loss for the year
ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss*

Actuaral loss related to the pensian scheme
Deferrad tax on actuanal loss

Othor comprehensive loas for the yaar, net of tax

Total comprehenslve loss for the year

Arributable to

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Tha notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

Note

28
18

.

Yearended 31  Year ended 31
March 2018 March 2015
£'000 £000
{7.9286) (32,512)
(1,136) (2,.629)

204 625
{B,857) {34,616)
{8,857) (34 6818)
(10,034) {35,723)

1,177 1,107
{8,857} {34,618}

10




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2016
Registerad number 06251684

34 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014

2016 2015
Notg £000 £'000 £000
ASSETS
Non-currant asseis
intangible assets 10 337,953 325,168 321,618
Property, plant and equipment 11 24,107 19,217 18,050
Equity accounted investments 12 766 842 880
Investments 13 5,780 180 180
Surpius on defined bensfit pansion scheme 26 3,524 4,432 8,570
Deferred tax asset 18 5,285 5116 1,170
377,405 354,055 348,466
Current asseots
Current tax assets v i) 121 1.997
Trade and other receivables 14 48,147 42,083 49,347
Cash and cash equivalents 5722 43,097 73,144
82,248 85,301 124,488
Total assets 459,653 440,258 472,954
LIABILITIES
Current llabllities
Trade and other payables 156 48,548 47,233 51,014
Barrowings 16 42,297 40,462 20,169
Provisions 17 1,221 1,011 1,124
93,068 88,708 81,307
Non-current llabilitias
Borrowings 18 820,872 843,614 847,472
Provisions 17 1,336 2723 3,529
822,208 846,337 851,001
TYota! Habititles $15,274 935,043 932,308
Net liabilities 455,621 484 787 459 354
EQUITY A
Share capital 19 49,167 - -
Retained deficit (504,788) {494, 787) (459,354}

!455562‘1 ) !494!7872 £459!354!

Arributable to:

Sharehoiders funds (456,835) (495 867) (460,314)
Non-controlling Interests 1,214 1,180 960
Total equity 455,621 494 787 459,354

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

The financ:al statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 July 2018 and
we! mgzgd an s behalf by.

Singer
D:recmr ‘
26 July 201

ik




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Share capltal  Retalnad Total Non- Total equity
’ defigit controlling
Nate interosts
£'000 £000 E'QD0 £'000 £'600

At 1 April 2014 - {460,314) (460 314) 260 {458,354)
Loss for tha year B (33,819) (33,619) - (33,819)
Non-controthng Interest share of profit - - - 1107 1107
Dividends pald ta non-controliing interests - - - {1.184) (1184)
Purchase of non-controlling interests B - - 69) (89)
Increase In non-controtling interasts . - 378 are
Actuarial loss related to the pension scheme 28 - {2 528) (2,629) - {2 629)
Defemred tax on actuariet l08s 18 - 525 528 - 526
Non-controlling [nterests acquired in the year - 70 70 - i)
At 31 March 2016 - {485 867) (495,087 1,180 {494,787)
At 1 April 2015 -« (495 907) (495,887) 1.180 (494.767)
Loss for the year - {9.103) (9,103) - (8 103)
Non-controlling interest share of profit - - - 1177 1177
Shares 1ssuad In the ysar 16 49 167 - 49,167 - 48,167
Actuarisl (oss related to the pension scheme 25 - (1.120) {1,128) - (1,138)
Defarred tax on aciuariat loss 18 - 204 204 - 204
Dividends pafd to non-controlling interasts . - - {1,143} {3,143}
At 31 March 2018 49,187 506,002 1214 {458,821)

The notes on pages 14 to 43 form part of these financial statements

12




This is Global Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year anded 31 March 2016

Cash flowa from operating activities
Loss for the year

Adjustments for.

Depreciation

Amortisation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibie
assets

Net finance costs

Share of results of associates and joint ventures
Movement in retirement benefit obligatians
Maovement in non-controlling interests on acquisition
Increase in non-controlling interests

Faur value adjustmants an prior year acquisitions
Incoma tax credit

Changes in-

Trade and other raceivables
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Cash generated from operating activities

Interest paid
Income taxes (paid) recoverad
Nat cash from aperating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities

Intarest receved

Dividends recewed from associates

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Acguisition of investments

Acquisition of property, piant ang equipment
Acquisthion of intangible assets

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Cash flows from financing activitias

Proceeds from borrowings

Repaymants of loans and borrowings

Payment of debt issue costs

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Decrease in cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Cash and cash egurvalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 14 1o 43 form pan of thesa financial statements.

+

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000
(7,926) (32.512)
4,141 3,825
5,365 2,708

- 7

70,864 92,841
672) (583)
(74) (183)

- 70

- 376

- 16
(1,943} (3,331}
69,555 63,434
(3,728) 7,262
(2,755) (4,643)
{1,203) (919)
61,868 65,134
(5.855) {2,581)
{I76) 1,787
55,838 64,340

80 179

757 829

- 1168
(4,828) -
(6,600) (307)
{9,031) (5,200)
(6,223) (6,291}
= (69)
{24,842) (10,643)

- 200,000
{37,228) {281,250)
- (1,300)
(1,143) ~(1,184)
(38,371) (83,744)
(7,375) {30,047)

43,097 73,144

36,722 43,097

13




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policles

a) Reporting entity

This 1s Global Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom

These consohdated financial statements are for the This (s Global Limited group (the “Group™) and they compnse
the Cempany and its subsidiaries which are listed In full in note 34 of the Company financial statements

The Group’s principal achvity during the year was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United
Kingdom

The Group financial statements were approved by the board of directers an 29 July 2018
b) Statement of compliance

The financta! statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Internationai Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union {"IFRS") and the Companies Act 2006

¢) Functional and presentational currency

*

These financial statements are presented in pounds Sterling (£), which 18 the Group and the Company's functional
and presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histoncal cost basis The accounting policies set out below
have been applied consistently to tha Group to all periods presented in these financial statements

For all periods up to and sncluding the year endad 31 March 2015, the Group prepared financial siatements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("UK GAAP’) These financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “reporing date”) are the first the Group has prepared n
accordance with IFRS

The Group's deemed transition date to IFRS 1s 1 April 2014, details of how the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS
has affected the Group's reported position and performance are given in note 31 to the Group financal
statements The principles and requirements for first tme adoption of IFRS are sel out in IFRS 1 Firsi-ime
adoption of International Finencial Reporting Standsrds {'IFRS 1%} IFRS 1 allows certain exemptions Iin the
apphcaton of particular standards to pnor penods in order to assist companies with the transition process

o) Basls of consolidation

The Group financial statements compnse the financial statements of the Company and its subsidhanes The
financial statements of subsidianes are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using
consistent accounting pelicies

A subsidiary I1s an entity controlled, etther directly or indirectly, by the Company An investor contrals an investes
when it 18 exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its powar over the investee

The results of a subsidiary acquired during the pericd are included in the Group's results from the effactive date
on winch control Is transferred to the Group All intercompany batances and transactions, including unrealised
profits ansing from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated in full

Non-contralling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's entifiable net assets at the
date of transition

f) Interests in equity-accounted investments
The Group's Interests In equity-accounted investees comprise Interests in associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entihies in which the Group has sigmificant influence, but not control or joint control, over the
financial and operatng policies A joint venture 18 an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby

the Group has nights to the net assets of the arrangement rather than nghts to its assets and obligations for its
liabiites

Interests in associates and the joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method They are nitally
recogrised at cost, which includes transaction costs Subsequent to imibal recognition, the consolidated financial
staternents include the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-accounted
investees, until the date on which signdficant influerice or joint control ceases
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1. Accounting policies (continued)
g) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet effective

The following new standards, amendments to slandards and interprefations issued by the Intematicnal
Accounting Standards Board ("JASB") became effectiva during the year ended 31 March 2016 The accounting
pohcies adopted in the presentaton of these financial statements reflact tha adoption of the following new
standards, amendments to standards and interpretations as of 1 April 2015, These have not has any material
impact on the financial statemants

« Amendments to IAS 27 Equity method in separate financial statements {effactive 1 January 2016)

» Amendments to 1AS 16 and 1AS 38 Clanfication of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation (effective 1 January 2018)

* Annual improvaments to fFRSs 2010 — 2014 Cycle {effective 1 January 2016}

» Amendmants to IAS 1 Disclosure imitiatives {(effective 1 January 2016)

Standards affective In future periods

Certain new standards, amendments and :nterpretations to existing standards have been published that are
raelevant to the Group's activties and are mandatory for the Group's accounting penods beginning after 31
January 2016 or later and which the Group has decided not to adept early

+ IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with cusforners {wiil become effective for accounting penods
starting on or after 1 January 2017)"

» IFRS 8 Financiel Instrumenis (wilt become effective for accounting penods starting on or after 1
January 2018)'°

The impact of thess standards 1s curmently being assessed
— The mandatory adoption under EU adopting regulations has not yet baen confirmed
h} Critical accounting eatimates and judgements

In preparing these financial siatements, manegement has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the Group accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabikties, income,
expenses and other disclosures, The estimates and undenying assumptions are based on historical experience
and vanous other factors that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewad on an ongoing basis

Changes in accounting estimates may ba ngcessary If there are changes in the circumstances on which the
estimate was based, or as a result of new infarmation or further information Such changes are recognised in the
panod in which the estimate 1 revised

Key assumptions about the future and kay sources of estimation uncertainty that have a nsk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the carrying vaiue of assets and liabilites over the next year are set cut below

impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

These assets ame reviewed annually for impaiment or more frequently if there is an indication of mpairment to
ensure that they are not carried above their estimated recovarable amounts To assass if any impalrment exists,
estmates are made of the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal
Actual outcomes could vary from such estimates of discounted future cash fiows

Onerous lease provision

Where a leased property 18 no longer expectad to be fully occupied or where the costs exceed the future expected
benafits, an onerous lease provision will be recogrised for that portion of the lease that 1s in excess to the Group's
requirements and not fully recovered through sub-sasing, oF through value 1n use The actual fulure expectad
costs could vary from the estmated provision

{ncoma taxes

Estimates may be required in determining the leve! of current and deferrad income fax assets and liabdities, which
the directors believe are reasonable and adequately recognise any mcome tax related uncertaintes Vanous
factors may have favourable or adverse effacts on the micome tax assets or labiites These include changss in
tax legislation, tax rates and ellowances, future lavels of spanding, the Group's level of future eamings and
esttmated fuiure taxable profits

Impairment of trade recelvables

The Group is required fo make an estimate of the recoverable value of trade recevables When assessing
impairment of trade receivables, management considers the age profile of receivables as well as any specific
known problams or nsks,

15




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Accounting palicies (continued)
h) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

tseful economic life of assets

The Group's policy for applying usefu! economic ives and residual values of assets has been determmed through
applying histoncal expenence and taking into consideration the nature of assets and their intended us.

Control over the Group's subsidiaries

The Group must assess whether it controls s subsidiaries when determuning whether to consolidate the
subsidianes

The Group's Influence over associates

The Group must assaess whether it has significant influence over its associates when determimng whether it
should equity account for the associates

i} Golng concern
At 31 March 2015 the Group had net habitties of £455 6m (2015 £494 8m)

The Group has prepared detailed forecasts of expected future cash flows for the three years ending 31 March
2019 (“the forecasts”) The Board considers the forecasts have been prepared on a prudent basis taking into
account current consensus forecasts of the radio advertising market. However, the Group has also prepared a
worse than expected downside scenano Even under this sensitised scenano, the forecasts indicate that the
Group can contimue to trade for the foreseeable future and operate within its facility and the associated financial
covenants

The directors consider it approprate to prepare the financiai statements on a going concern basis  The directors’
forecasts show sufficient cash will be generated from the Group's operations to be able to repay the bank loan
and other ohiigations as they fall due

I) Segment reporting

A segment s a componsni of the Group that engages i business activities from which it may eam revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other
components All cparatng segmenis’ operating results are reviewad regularly by the Group's board of directors to
make decisions about resources to be atlocated to a segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financal information Is available (see note 2)

k) Foralgn currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into pound Sterling, the Group's functional currency, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured Foreign
currency translation gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translabon at
yaar-and exchange rates of monetary assets and liabiliies drnominated in foreign currencies are recognised In
the Income Statement Foreign currency translation gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Income Statement within finance income or finance expense All other foreign
currency translation gains and losses are prasented in the income Statement within direct costs and
admenistrative expenses

The assets and liabiiities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arismg on
consolidation, are transiatad to the Group's functional currency, Sterling, at foreign cwrrency exchange rates ruling
at the reporting date

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the period, which
approximates the foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Exchange differences
arising from the translation of foreign operations are reported in other comprehansive income

}] Investments

Investments are included tn the Statement of Financtal Position (or Balance Sheet) at cost less amounts wntten-
off, representing tmpawment in value. Impairment charges are recorded f events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying vatue may not be recoverable
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued) :
1 Accounting pollcies {continuod)

m}  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Cost X
ncludes the onginal purchase pnce of the assets and costs atinbutable to bringing the asset to its working !
condition for its intended use

Property, plant and equipment i1s depreciated at rates calculaled to wnte off the cost less residual value of each .
asset over its useful economic life on a straight line basis over the following penods

Freehold property 25 to 50 years

Capitalisad leaseheid costs Over the term of the lease
Fixtures, filttings and technical equipment 3 to 10 years
Transmitters 20 years

Gains and losses on disposals of assets are calculated as the difference between the proceeds received and the
carrying valus of the asset at the time of disposal and are recocgnised in profit or loss

impairment of property, piant and equipment

Impairment reviews of propery, plant and equipment are undertaken whenever svenis or changes in
circumstances indicate their carmying value may not be recoverable If the fair vatue of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced o its recoverable amount Where an impairent
logs subsequently reverses, the carrying amount 18 increased to the revised estmate, but restncted so that the
increased amount does not exceed the carnnng amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
besn recognised in pnor years Any imparment losses or reversals are recognised immediately in the incoma
statement

n) Intangible assets
Software costs

Purchased software costs are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment iosses Costs
associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an.expense as incurred

Software development cests that are directly attnbutable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group are recoegnised as intangible assets when the following cnternie are met’

- it1s technically feasible to complets the software product so that it will be available for use,

- managemeni intends to complete the software product and use or sell i,

- there 1s an abllity to use or seli the software product,

- It ¢can be demonstratad how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are available, and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product duning its devalopment can be rehably measured

Softwara costs recognised as assets are amartised over ther estimated useful lives of three years
Radio lficences

Radio licences are valued at cost iese accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impaiment losses Radio
licences are amortised over the period of the licence )

impalrment of lmanglb!é asgets {excluding goodwil)

Impaliment reviews are undertaken whenaver events or changes in circumstances mdicate their carrying value
may not be recoverable If the fair value of an Intangible asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. Where an imparment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount is increased o the revised eslimate, but restricted g0 that the increased amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no imparment loss been recognised n prior years
Any impaimment losses or reversals are recegnised immediately in the Income Statement

o) Goodwill

Business combnations are accounted for using the acquisition methed The costs of an acquisimon ts measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of
any non-controfiing wierest in the acquiree Acquisibon costs incurred are expensed and included m
adminstrative expenses

Any contingent considerstion to be transferrad by the Group will be recognised at fair value at the acquisiton date
Subsequant changes to the fair value will be recognised esther within the Income Statement or in other
comprehsnsive income.

Goodwill on acquisition 18 initially measured at cost bamng the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group's interest in the net far value of the identifiable assets, liabilites and contingent lfabilifes Identfiable
intangible assets, meeting either the contractuai-legal or separability critenon are recognised separataly from
goodwill Fellowing wubal recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1) Accounting policies {continuod)
o) Goodwlll (continued)

Gaogdwill iIn respect of an acquired subsidiary is recognisad as an itangible asset Goodwill in respect of an
acquired associate of joint vanture 1s Included within Nvestments accounted for using the equity method

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment, annually or more fraquently if events or changes in circumstances mdicate
that the carrying value may be impaired

Where the fair value of the interest acquired in an entity's assets, habilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
consideration paid, the excess is recognised immediately as a gain in the Income Statement

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired 1s allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to
benefit from the combination's synergies Impairment 1s determined by assessing the recovarable amount of the
cash genserating unit, to which the goodwill relates Where the reccverable amount of the cash generating unit 1s
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised Where goodwill forms part of & cash generating
umit and part of the operation within that unit s dispased of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
1s included in the carrying amount of the operatwon when determining the gain or ioss on disposal of the operation
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance 1s measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained

As parmitted by IFRS 1, the Group elected not to apply IFRS 3 Busmiess Combinafions ('IFRS 37) to busimess
combinations that occurred before 1 April 2014 As a result, goodwill recognised as an asset under UK GAAP as
at 1 Apnil 2014 has nat bean revised retrospactivaly to identify and extract intangible assets to be recognised
separate from goodwill

p) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recogn;sed inibally at far value, which 1s deemed to be the transaction price
Subsequantly, trade and other rocelvables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
iess any provision for impaiment

Q) Cash

Cash and cash equivalents compnses cash balances and money market deposits Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash managerent are included as a component of
cash and cash egqurvalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows

r} Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified 2s equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equiy, net of any tax effects

Share premium

The share premiurn account reprasonts the amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nomina! value, less
any costs directly aftributable to the issue of new sharas

Retained deficit

The retained deficit represents the curnulative net gains and losses recognisad in the Income Statement
Dividends

Dwidends on ordinary share capital are recognised as a kabikly in the Group's financial statements in the penod in
which they are declared In the case of intenm dividends, these are considered to be declared when they are paid
and n the case of final divdends these are declared when authonsed by the shareholders

4

8) Trade and other payablos

Trade payables ara obligatons to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers Trade payables are recognised inltially at far value and subsequently measured at
amorieed cost Trade payables are classified as current labihies If payment is due within one year or iess,
otharwise they are presented as non-current llabilities

t) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inbally at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently
carned at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is racognised in the Income Statement over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method,

Fees paid an the establishmant of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
is probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down: In this case, the fee ts deferred until the draw-down
occurs To tha extent thers s no evidence that it 15 probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down, the
fee I3 capitalised as a pre-payment for iquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1) Accounting policies (continued)

u) Finance income and expense

Finance income compnses interest recerved on cash balances

Finance expense compnses Interest payable on borrowings, amertisation and wnte off of debt issuance costs and
the unwinding of the diseount on non-currant provisiona.

Interest 1s recognised n profit or 1oss as it accrues using the effachive interest rate Interest payable on
borrewings includes a chargs in respect of attnbutable transaction costs, which are recogrised in profit or loss
over the penod of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

v) Financial instruments

A financial instrument 1s Initally recognised at farr value on the Statement of Financlal Posidion when the entity
becomes parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument A financial instrument 1s derecogrised when the
confractual nghts to the cash flows axpire or substantively all nsks and rewards of ownership are transfarred A
financiat habidlity 1s derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged. cancelled of expires

Subseguent to nitial racognition, all financial habdes are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method

w) Currant and deferred Income tax

The tax expense for the pericd comprises current and deferred tax Tax is recogmised in the Incomea Staterment,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectivaly.

The current income tax chargs 18 calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enactad at the
reporting date Management pencdically evaluates posiions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which epplicable tax regulation 1 subject to interpretation it establishas provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Defarred iIncome tax is recognised on temparary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and kapilitias
and thair carrying amounts in the Statement of Financial Positon Howaver, deferred tax habilites are not
recognised if they anse from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferrad income tax is not accounted for if it arisas
from initial recogrution of an asset or iability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affacts neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Defarred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantivaly enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and
are expected to apply when the related defermed income tax asset is realised or the defamrad income tax iiabiiity is
settled

Defarred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will ba
available against which the temporary differences can be utitised

Deferred income tax liabiities are provided on taxable temporary differences ansing from mvestments n
subsidiaries, except for daferred income tax habilities where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
15 controlled by the Group and it is probabie that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseseable
future

Deferred income tax asse!s are recognised on deductible temporary differences ansing from investments i
subsidianes only to the extant that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and thare 15
sufficient taxable profit aveilable against which the temporary difference can be utillsed Deferred income tax
assats and labilities are offset whan there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets agamnst curment
tax liabilties and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabliities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authonty on eithaer the same taxaeble entity or different taxzble entities whera there 13 an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis

x) Employee benofits
Short term employee benefits

Shont-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided A liabillty is recognised for the
amount expected to be pald if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past sarvice provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

Termination benefits

Termmation benefits are payable when employment s termmated by the Group before the rormal retirement date,
or whenaver an empiloyee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these bensfits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the eartier of the followang dates {a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b} when the entity recognises costs for a restructunng that 1s within the scope of 1AS 37
Provisions, contingent hahilities and contingent assets ("IAS 37") and involves the payment of termination benefits
In the case of an offer made to encourage veluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measurad based on
the number of employess expecied to accept the offer Benefits falling due more than 1 year after the end of the
reporting pericd are discounted o therr present value
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
1 Actounting policies (continued)

x) Employes bensefits (continued)

Defined contribution pensfon schema

The Group operates employee optional stakeholder retirement and death benefit schemes Both employee and
employars are required to make contributions with the employers’ contnibutions for each employee determened by
the level of cantribution made by the employee and the employee's {ength of service within the Group or
subsidiary company The employer's contrbutions are charged to profit and loss in the year in which the
contributions are due

Definod benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pensicn schema which raguires contnibutions to be made to separately
adrristered funds The cost of providing benefits under the plan s determined using an independent actuanal
valuaton This 1s based on the projected unit credit mathed and 1s recognised in accordanca with the advice of a
qualfied actuary Past service costs resulting from enhanced benefits are recognised on a straight-line basts over
the vesting period or immediately if the benefits have vested

Re-measurement gains and losses, and taxation thereon, are recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss 1n subsequent penods Re-measurements compnse actusnal gains and losses, the
return on plan assets {(exciuding amounts included 1n net interest) and changes in the amount of any asset
restrichons Actuanazl gains and losses may result from diffarences between the actuanal assumptions underlying

the plan liabitties and actual expernence dunng the year or changes in the assumplions used in the valuation of
the plan habitihes

The defined benafit liability or asseat recognised in the Statement of Financial Positon {(or Balance Sheet)
comprises the present vaiue of the benefit obligation using a discount rate based on appropnate high quality
corporate bonds, at the reporting date, minus any past service costs not yet racognised, minus the fair value of
the plan assets, if any, at the reporting date Where the plan 1s in surplus, the asset recognisad 1s imited to the
amount which the Group expects to recover by way of refunds or reduction m future contnbutions

y) Share based payments

The Group has a long term incentive share scheme under which it makes equity-setted share-based payments to
eligible employees The cost of aquity-settied share-based payments are measured at fair value at tha date of
grant and recogrised as an expense over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the employees
become fully entitled to the reward

Fair value I1s estmated using appropnate models for the particular awards under consideration In valuing eguity
settled transactions, no account 1s taken of any vesting conditions, other than the performance conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (market conditions) Any other conditions which are required to be metin
order for an employee to become fully enutled to an award are considered to be non-vesting conditions These are
also taken inta account in determining the grant date fair value

No expense I1s recogrised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settied transactons where
vesting 1s conditional LUpon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irmespective of whether
or not the markef or non-vasting condibion (s satisfied, provided that all other performance and/cr service
conditions are satsfied

At each reporting date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the number of the achievement or otherwise of
non-market vesting condittons and of the number of equity instruments that will ulimatsiy vest or, In the case of an
instrument subject 1o a market condition, be treated as vesting The movament in cumulative expense since the
previous reporting date s recognised in the Income Statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the terms of an equity-settied payments award are modified or a new award 1s designated as replacing a
cancelled or settled award, the cost based on the cnginal award terms continues to be racognised over the
original vesting period in addilion, an expense is recogrused over the remainder of the new vesting penod for the
ncremantal fair valus of the modification, based on the difference hetween the fair valus of onginal award and the

fair value of the modified award, both as measured at the date of modification No reduction 1s recognised if this
difference s nagatve

Where an equity-settled award 1s cancelled (where non-vesting conditions within the control of ether the entity or
the employee are not met), it is ireated as if it had vesled on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yot
recogrised for the award 3 expensed iImmediately Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award at the
cancellation or setttement date 1s deducted from equity, with any excess over fair value being treated as an
expense In the Income Statement
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)

1 Accounting policles (continued)

z) Provisions

Provisions for onerous [eases, restructunng costs, legal ciaims and other future costs are recognised when

- the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
- itts probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
- the amount has been refiably estimated

Prowvisions are not recognised for future operating losses Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expectad to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks speaific to the obiigation

aa) Revenye recognition
Ravenue, which 1s stated excluding any value added tax, agency commissions and trade discounts

Revenue 15 recognisad to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic banefits will flow to the Group and the
revanue can be rehably measured Key classes of revenue are recognised on the following basis

Radio adverhising Date of broadcast

Sponsarship Over the term of the contract
Internet revenue Over the term of the contract
Transmission fees Over the tarm of the contract
Production of adverts On date of relsase to clients
Enterpnse revenue On agreed settlement with all parties
CD revenue On sale of CD

Revenus on barter transactons 1s recognised only when the goods or services being exchanged are of a similar
nature

bb)} Leases
The Group is both a lessor and lessee of property, plant and equipment

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownerstup are classified as operating
leases Operating leass rental expenditureiincoms 18 charged to the Income Statement on a straight-ine basis
over the lease term

Lease incentives are recorded as a hability and then recognised over the lease term on straight-ine basis in the
Income Statement as a reduction of rental expensa

cc) Falr value measurement

A number of the Group’s accounting palicies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilites Set out below 18 an analysis of the valuation method of the
Group's financial instruments

The different levels in the farr value hierarchy have been defined as follows

+Lavel 1 quoted (unadjusted) pnces in active markets for identical assets ot liabilitias

«Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable, for the asset or
habihty, either directly ( @ as pnces) or indireclly (1@ denved from pnces)

*Level 3 inputs for the asset or hiability that are not based on observabie market data {unobservable
Inpuits)

The Group has no assets or hiabilities wherae fair values have been determined for measurement purposes
Borrowings (level 3)

Borrowings, as disclosed in note 16 and note 20, 13 calculated as the prasent value of the estimated future cash
flows based on the terms and matunty the loan and using market interest rates as spplicable for a sumilar
instrument at the measurement date

dd) Financial guarantee ¢ontracts

Where the Group enters into financral guarantse contracts to guarantee the indebiedness of other companies
within the Group, the Group considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such In
this respect, the Group treats the guarantea contact as a contingent lrabihity untl as such tme as itbacomes
probable that the Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantes

21




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements (continued)
2 Operating segmaents

The Group's chief operating decision maker has been Wentfied as the board of directors The board of diractors
review the Group's internal reporting on a monthiy basss in arder to assess performance and allocate resources

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reporis used by the board The boand mainly
assesses performance based on adjusted EBITDA

The Group has one reportable segment being commercial radio broadcasting in the United Kingdom Other
operations includas events advertising commission, telewiston and cd sales None of these segments met the
quantitative thresholds for reportable segments in the 2015 or 2016 financial years,

The Group's operations are virtually all complsted in the Unlted Kingdom, the Group's operations outside the
United Kingdom are not sigmficant

All transactions betwasn segments are completed on an ams-length basis

The Group 1s not rehant cn any major customers and no single customer provides more than ten percent of Group
revenue

Commaicis! radie broadcmting Othar operations Totui
Yeir anded 31 Mazch Yaa ended 31 March Yoar ended 31 Maich Yaa gnded 31 Warch Year snded 31 Mach Yow énded 31 Masch
0 2015 2000 s aove 2018
oo [ €000 fo0a [, £000
Tolal tevenue .Z_II ] a4 a0 FiE- T Th 247 285,185
MR RPN (MO . - - -
Revenua from extamal cuvloners Hism 4 Mt R 0,704 MY 255 196
Dracl conm. (49 714} 150 31,
Geove prot 738,533 Fieses.
Qperaling expaves 1151 998} 1142 287)
Agjueied CEITDA T42T ¥2.308
Ofner exornsan Ha414) (45 680)
Qperatng prak 20123 20515
Net hnance sxpeness [10 oD4} 192 84y
Shace of prof of exialy Accounted ivamess nel of 131 812 583
Losa belote lavalon E m....._
3 Adjusted EBITDA
Yoarended 31  Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000
Operating profit 60,123 56,515
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4141 3,925
Amortisation of intangibies 5,365 2,708
Other operating expenses 4,908 9,247
Adjusted EBITDA 74,637 72,395

4 Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging/({crediting)

Year endad 31

Year eanded 31

March 2016 March 2015

£'000 £'800

Amortisation of intangible assets 5,365 2,708

Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 15

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,141 3,925

Loss on digsposal of property, plant and equipment - 7
QOperating lease rentals

- land and buildings 5,516 5 036

- motor vehicles and other leases 1,296 273

Lease income received (141) . {(111)
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4 Operating profit (continued)

Auditors’ remuneration for audit and non-audit services dunng the year was

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the
audit of the Company's annual financial statements

Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates in respect of
The auditing of financial statements of associates of the Group
pursuant to legislaton

Cther services pursuant to legisiation

Taxation compliance sersces

All taxation advisory services not included above

All other services

[ Empleyess

Year ended 31
March 2016
£'000

86
17

68
33

Year ended 31
March 2015
£'000

35

150

151
60

The average number of people employed by the Group (including directors) durng the year was as foliows

Sales
Programming
Admunistration

The aggregate remuneration costs of these employees ware as follows

Wages and salanes

Social secunty costs

Contributions to defined benefit pension schemas
Contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
Numbar Number
634 815
382 373
233 222
1,249 1,210

Yoar ended 31

Year ended 31

8. Directors

The remuneration costs of the Group's directors were

Remuneration
Contributions to defined contnbution penston schemes

March 2016 = March 2015
£'000 £'000

62,896 62,452

6,708 6,805

333 438

1,462 1,243

71,398 70,938
Yearendod 31  Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'C0OC

10,515 5,301

g8 96

10,603 5387
. Number Number

3 3

Number of directors to whom retirement benefits accrue
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6. Directors (continued)

The remuneration of the highest paid director was

Year endad 31 Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015

£'000 £000

Aggregate emoluments 7,272 21 83
7,272 2,163

The amounts disclosed above represent the remuneration for the qualifying services of the directors of the Group

IAS 24 Related party lransactions (1AS 247) requires the Group to disclose all transactions and outstanding
balances with the Group's key management parsonnel IAS 24 defines key management personnel as those
persons having autharty and responsibiity for plannung, directing and controling the activities of the entty,
directly or indirectly, including any director {whether executive or ctherwise) of that entity

The key management personnel who are responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Group are the Group s dwectors

Dunng the year a number of directors were granted loans in relation to a cash-settled share-based payment
arrangement The loans are due for repaymant on the settloment of the scheme The loan balances outstanding

are

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2018 March 2015
£000 £'000

Loans to directors n relation to cash-settled share
based payment arrangement 375 75

7 Finance income

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015

- £'000 £000

Bank interest recaivable 80 178
Interest on pension scheme assets 1,667 1,858
1837 2,037

==
8 Finance expansae

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2016 March 2015
£'000 £'000

Interast payable on bank loans and overdrafts 4,973 2,745
Interest payable on other loans 63,782 70,386
Movement in fair value adjustments on borrowings 1,881 19,705
Amorhsation of debt 1ssue costs 462 582
Interast on pension scheme habiliies 1,403 1,560
72,301 94 978
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q. Incomae tax cradit

{a) Analysis of tax credit In the period

Current tax expense

UK corporation tax on the loss for the year
Adjustments in respect of pnor years
Total current tax expense

Deferred tax credit

Ongmnation and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments in respect of pnor years

TFotal defarred tax credit

Income tax credit

{b) Factorse affocting the tax credit in the period

Loss before before tax

Loss before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of
20% (2015 21%)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Interest expense not deducuble for tax puposes
(Recognition) f non recognitton of deferred tax on temporary
differences

Profit on disposal of property

Special factors aftecung joint-ventures and associates
UK Dvidend income from associates

Effects of changes in tax rates

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Income tax credit

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2018 March 20156
£'000 £'000

176 297

(116) (207)

60 [:10)

(2.003) (3,421)
{2,003) (3,421)
{1,943) {3,331)

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2016 March 2015
£000 £'000
(9,889) (35,843)
{1,974) (7,527)
1,668 1,830
45 546
{1,848) 2,008
- (213)
19 73
(154) (185)
315 256
(116) (208}
{1,843) {3,331)

The standard rate of corporation tax In the UK changed from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015
Accordingly, the effective rate of 20% has been used In the computation of current tax

Further changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the Summer 2015 Budget Statement The
2015 Finance Act includes legisiation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% from 1 Apnl
2017, and then to reduce the corporation tax rate further from 18% to 18% from 1 April 2020

The reduction 1n tax rates was substantively enacted on 26 Qcteber 2015 and, therefors a tax rate of 18% has
been used in thesa financial statements to measure the deferred tax assets and lizbiities

In the 2016 budget cn 168 March 2016 it was announced that from 1 Agpril 2020 the carporation tax rate would
decrease to 17% The 2016 budget had not been substantively enacted at the reporting date
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10 Intangible assats

Software Radio

costs Licences Goodwlll Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 17,268 1,476 832,413 651,157
Acquisitions - 11,556 n 11,827
Additions 6,223 - - 6,223
Disposals (3,737} - - (3,737}
At 31 March 2016 19,754 13,032 632,784 665,570
Amortlsation and Impairment
At 1 Apnl 2015 9,317 695 316,977 325,989
Charge for the year 4231 1,134 - 5,365
Disposals (3,737} - - (3,737}
At 31 March 2016 9,811 1,829 315,977 327,617
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 8,843 11,203 316,807 337,853

Software Radio

costs Licences Goodwill Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apri 2014 13,747 1,476 632,429 647,652
Acquisitions - - (16} {18)
Additions 6,291 - - 6,291
Disposats (2,770) - - (2,770)
At 31 March 2015 17,268 1,476 832,413 651 157
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 Apnl 2014 9,498 561 315.977 326,036
Charge for the year 2,574 134 - 2,708
Disposals {2 755) - - (2,755)
At 31 March 2015 9,317 895 315,977 325,989
Net book value
At 1 Apri 2014 4249 915 318,452 321,616
At 31 March 2015 7,951 781 316,436 325,168

On the acquisithion of Juice Holdco Limited the Group acquired a radio ioence with a value of £11 5m At 31 March
2016 the carrying value of the radio licence was £9 Om and it had a remawung useful econaomic life of 5 years

The Group completes an impairment review of goodwill annually In accordance with IAS 38 impanrment of assels
. {"IAS 36") the Group has completed a review of its oparations and determined that the Group has one cash

generating unit (*CGU"), betng the Commercial Radio Broadeasting CGU, and for the purposes of testing for
impaiment the Group's entire goodwill is allocated to this CGU

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of 8 CGU using a value n usa model by projecting pre-tax cash
flows for the next five years together with a terminal value using a long term growth rate The key assumptions
underpinming the recoverable amounts of the CGUs tested for impairment are forecast revenue and EBITDA

The five yoar plans used in the impaiment models are based on management's past experisnce and future
expectations of performance

The key assumptions used for alt matenat CGUs are a pre-tax discount rate of 8 6% (2015 8 1%), a short to
medium term growth rate of 3% (2015 3%), and a long term growth rate of 3% (2015 3%)

The pre-tax discount rate used is derived from a weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") calculation for the

Group and banchmarked against simtlar orgamsations operating within the sector, The loang term growth rate used
does not exceed the avarage for the sector
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10 Intang/ble assets (continued)

The total recoverable armount In respect of goodwlll, as assessed by management using the above assumptions,
15 greater that the canrying amount and therafors no impairment charge has been booked

Management consider that o is not reasanably possible for the assumptons to change so sigruficantly as to
ellminate the excess.

11 Property, plant and equipment

Transmitters, flxtures

and technlcal
. Land and buildings agquipment Total
£000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2015 16,605 6,391 22 996
Additions 2,543 6,488 9,031
Disposals (1,428) {4,554) {5,982)
At 31 March 2016 17,720 8,325 26 045
Depreciation
At4 Apnd 2015 801 2,978 3,719
Charge for the year 1,600 2,541 4,141
Disposals (1,428} {4 554) (5,982)
At 31 March 2016 873 Qa8s 1,838
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 16,747 7,360 24,107

Transmitters, fixtures

and technical
Land and bulldings equipment Tatal
£000 E*'00D £'000

Cost
At 1 April 2014 18,242 8,453 26,695
Additions 3,442 1,758 5,200
Disposals {5,079) ~(3,820) {8.898)
At 31 March 2015 16.605 8,391 22,996
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 3,470 5175 8,645
Charge for the year 2,314 1.811 3.825
Disposals {4,083} {3,808) {8,781}
At 31 March 2015 801 2,978 3,778
Net book valus
At 1 Apnl 2014 14,772 3,278 18 050
At 31 March 2015 15,804 3.413 19,217
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12. Equity accounted investments

Investmants in Investments In

joint ventures associates Total
E'000 £'000 £'000
Cost .
At 1 Apnl 2015 604 238 842
Additions - - -
{Decrease)increase in equity accounted investments (292) 208 {86)
At 31 March 2016 312 444 756
tnvestments in Investments In
joint ventures assoclates Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 2014 589 311 880
Additions 87 - &7
Decrease i equity accounted investments (32) {73) {108)
At 31 March 2015 604 238 842
The Group's investments in jont ventures are
Name Country % Ownaership
EG Digital Lyruted UK 460
The Digital Radio Group (London) Limited UK 5 5
Now Digital {(East Midlands) Limited UK 275
The Group's Investments in associates are
Name Country % Ownership
Wildstar Records Limited UK 500
CE Digital Limited UK 500
Composed Limited UK 500
13 Investments
Investmeants Total
£'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnil 2015 488 488
Additions 5,600 5 600
At 31 March 2016 6,068 6,088
Provislon for impairment
At 1 Aprll 2015 308 308
At 31 March 2016 308 308
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 5,780 5,780

Dunng the year the Group made an investment in a digital audio advertising solution provider
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13.  Inveatments (continuad)

Cost |
At 1 April 2014
At 31 March 2015

Proviglon for impalrment
At 1 Apnl 2014
At 31 March 2015

Net book value
At 1 Apnl 2014

At 31 March 2015

14. Trade and other receivables

Gross trade recelvables
Less pravisien for impairmant

Other debtors
Prepayments and accrusd income

The following table detals the movements in the provision for the impaiment of trade recevables

Baiance at the beginning of the year
Movement in provision
Balance at the end of the year

Investments Total

£'000 £'000

488 488

488 488

308 308

308 308

180 180

180 180

31 March 31 March 1 Apni 2014

2018 2015
£'000 £000 £'000
34,067 28,426 34,6876
{131) {379) (198)
33,938 28,047 34,480
3,638 5637 3,920
8,873 8,399 10,947
48,147 42,083 48,347
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015

£'000 £000 £000
379 186 168
(248) 183 8
131 378 186

The carrying value of trade and other recewvables Is a reascnable approximation of the fair value of trade and

other receivables

There are no material overdue trads receivables that have not been provided against.

16. Trade and other payables

Trade payabies

Other taxes and social security costs
Other creditors

Accruals and deterred income

31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
7,196 8,435 8,481
8,283 6.809 7.589
3,683 3,869 4,848
30,367 28,020 29,098
49 548 47.233 51,014

The carrying value of trade and other payables 1s a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other

payables
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16 Borrowings

Current 31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 25,000 25,000 10,000
Accrued interest 47,207 15,482 19,169
42,297 40,462 2__%%
Non-current 31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2018 2015
, £000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 142,736 187,274 34 232
Other loans 678,137 876,340 813,240
820,672 843,614 B47.472
—
The nominal value of the Group's borrowings at each reporting date 18 as follows
31 March 31 March 1 Apni 2014
2016 2015
£000 £000 £'000
Accrued interest 17,297 15,4682 19,168
Senior term loan notes 168,750 193,750 45,000
Fixed rate loan notes 99,573 129,338 112,469
Sharehoider loan notes 258,654 224916 185,679
Connected party ioan 1 84,045 75,673 213,205
Connected party loan 2 - 11,671 768,254
Lean from parent entity 204,883 205,440 206,137
. . 833,202 BSEH_IZB 1 867,813
The fair value of the Group's borrowings at each reporing date 1s as follows
31 March 31 March 1 Apnt 2014
2016 2016
£'000 £000 £'000
Accrued interest o 17,297 15,462 19,189
Senior term loan notes . 187,735 192,274 44,232
Fixed rate loan notes 122,945 160,048 133,080
Sharehclder loan notes 309,465 278,317 231,437
Connected party loan 1 80,485 82,848 225,035
Connected party ioan 2 - 12,566 74,258
Loan from parent enttty 158,242 142,561 144,420
883,169 884 076 878,641
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186 Borrowings (continued)
The interest rates on the Group's borrowings are as follows

Intarest rates on variable interest borrowings

Semor term lean notes
Connected party loan 4
Connscted party loan 2

Interest rates on fixed Interest borrowings

Fixed rate loan notes
Sharehotder loan notes
Loan from parent entity

Welghted avarage Interaest rate on hoerowings

The Group's borrowings hava the following matunty profile

Less than one year
Two to fiva years
Over five years

Less interast cash flows
Senior toarm notes

Fixed rate loan notes
Shareholder loan notes
Connectad party loan 1
Connected party loan 2
Loan from parant entity

Total principal cash flows

31 March 31 March 1 Apri 2014
2016 2015
% above % above % above
LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
2145% 215% 215%
10.80% 10 50% 10 50%
- 10 00% 10 00%
31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014
2018 2015
Fixed rate Fixed rate Fixed rate
15.00% 15 00% 15 00%
16.00% 15 00% 15 00%
0 00% 0 00% 0 00%
8 89% 8 10% 9 30%
3 March 31 March 1 April 2014
2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000
109,866 108,210 108,018
948,099 1,032,428 865,977
- - 206,137
1,057,766 1,140,638 1,180,132
(12,722) (17,728) {1,339)
(72,611) (82,454) (67,481)
(102,126) {143,384) (117,347)
(37,195} {35,583) (94,042}
- {5.240) {32,110)
833,202 858,251 887,813
——1

The senior tenn notes are secured by fixed and floating charges over the assels of the Group
The Group has undrawn commutted borrowing faciies of £10 mdkon at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2015 £10

million)
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17 Provisions

At 1 April 2014

Additions

Utiksed durnng the year
Released dunng the year

At 31 March 2015

Additions

Acquired during the year
Utiised duning the year
Released during the year
At 31 March 2016

The breakdown of provisions between current and non-current 1s as follows:

Onerous
lease
provision Total
£000 £'000
4,653 4,653
664 664
(1,349) {1 348)
{234) (234)
3,734 3,734
13 13
28 26
{202) {202)
{1,014) (1,014)
2,687 2,557

31 March 31 March 1 April 2014

2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £000
Current 1,221 1,011 1,124
Non-current 1,338 2,723 3,529
Total 2,557 3,734 4653

The onerous lease provision 15 & provision for vacant office and studio space that the Group has leased but s not
currently using The prowvision 1s calculated as the difference betwesn the total future lease payments less any
amounts expsected to be recovered by sub-leasing the space There are inherent uncerambes 0 measuring the

provisions of the future outflows
18. Deferred tax

Property plant and

Financtai Penslon
equipmeant and Tax losses [astruments surplus Other Total
intangible assels
£'000 £'000 E£'000 £000 £000 £000
Al 31 March 2015 428 - 4,589 (8886} 1,005 5118
Deferred tax assets 428 - 17,145 - 1,006 13,6878
Deferred tax kabilties - - {12,576) (886) (13.462)
Al 31 March 2016 428 - 4 560 (886) 1 005 5116
Cradit{charge) lo the income
statement 1627 Qo8 94 49 (875) 2003
Recognised n other
comprehensive income " i 204 B 204
Acguired in the year (2 038) - - - - - [2,038)
At 31 March 2016 317 goe 4,863 _(BI.E) 30 6!285
Deferred tax asseots 2,218 a08 14,0986 - 30 17,248
Deferred tax llabllitles (1,898) - {9,432) {633) - (11,8583}
At 31 March 2016 M7 808 4‘6163 ‘633] 30 5,285
At 1 Apnl 2014 - 224 642 {818) 1,123 1,170
Deferred tax assels - 224 13,603 485 1123 15,445
Deferrad iax liabltes - - (12 861) {1,314} - {14,275)
Al 1 Apnl 2014 - 224 842 (819) 1123 1170
Credit{charge) te the Income
stalement 428 {224) 3827 (592) (118) 3421
Recognigad in ather
comprehensive incame N - - 525 - 528
At 31 March 2015 428 - 4,589 {888} 'IIOOS 511 16
crmry e

Deferred tax aasets 428 - 17,145 - 1,006 18,578
Deferred lax kabilities - - (12 576) (8886) - (13,462}
At 31 March 2015 428 - gﬁe (888) 1,005 5,116
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18 Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax 15 provided i full on taxable temporary differences under the liability method using applicable tax
rates Deferred tax assets and l:abiliies are only offset where there s a jegally enforceable right of offsat and
there is an intention to setile the batancas net

The foilowing table lists the Group's unrecognised deferred tax assets
3 March 3t March

2016 2016

£'000 £000
Property, plani and equipmant 5:540 7.234
Tax losses 15,116 17,529
Othar 39 4
20!687 24.767

These potential defarred tax assets have not been recogmsed on the basis that it s not sufficiently certain when
taxable profits that can be utiised to abaorb the reversat of the temporary difference will be made n the future

19 Share capltal .

31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014

2016 2015
£ £ £
Issued, called up and fully pald
Ordinary shares of £1 49,166,881 1 1
49!165981 1 1

During the year £49,166,980 of loans were convertad to 49, 166,980 ordinary £1 shares which were 1ssued, called
up and fully paid

20 Funding and financial riak management

Financlal risk management

The Group holds and uses financial instruments to finance its operatrons and o manage its interest rate and
liquidity nsks The Group pnmarity finances its operations using share capital, revenue and borrowings

Tha Group's actvities expose It to a vanety of financial nsks market risk (interest rate nsk and foreign exchange
nsk), credit nsk and liquidity risk

The Group 1s pnmarily funded by debt Bank debt has been reduced during the year The Group's operations are
cash ganerative, and a genaral exposure to hquidity nisk 1s considered to be low The Group monitars parformance
against its banking covenants on a quarterly basis

The Group does not engage n trading or speculative actvities using denvative financial instruments
The camying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure
Market rish

Market risk 15 the nsk that changes in prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the
Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instrumants

Interest rate nsk

Intarest rate nsk I8 the sk of a change 1 the Group's cash flows due to a change in interest ratas  The Group has
both fixad rate and floating rate bomowings The ratio of fixad to floating rate borrowings 18 monitored on an
ongoing basis to ensure that the Group's 18 not too exposed to variabiity in interest rates

Foreign exchange nsk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of a change n the Group's cash flows due to a change In foreign currency
exchange rate The vast majonty of the Group's iIncome and expenditure is in pound Sterling therefore the Group
18 not exposed 1o significant foreign exchange risk
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20 Funding and financial risk management (continued}

Market risk {continued)

Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group If & customer or counter party to a financial Instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligatiens, and anses principally from the Group s receivables from customers

The diectors consider the Group's credit nsk from cash, cash equwvalents and deposits to be low as the Group
only entars transactions with banks or financial institutions with a credit rating of A or above

The Group has polices in place to manage potential credt nsk from trade receivables The Group mitigates the
nsk of payment default by s customers by the use of trade credt insurance for hugh vaiue customers Customer
credit tarms are determined using mndependent ratings agency data and regularly updated to reflect any changes
In customer circumstances or trading conditions Trads receivables are reviewed on a regular basis by the
Group’s credi control department to ensure debts are recoverad in full

The directors do not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been prowided for
Liquidily nsk

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The
Group's finance department regutarly monitors forecasts of the Group's liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational needs

Capital Management

Thae Group relies on capital for arganic growth The Group defines capital as equity as shown in the Statement of
Financial Posstion plus net debt (total borrowings iess cash) and seeks to achreve en acceptable retum on gross
capital

The Group manages its capital structure using a number of measures and taking into account its future strategic
plans Such measures Include ensuring the Group mamtans sufficient liquidity from the cash that the Group has
generated from operations

Fair valuo
Financial assets comprise trads and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
Financial habilibes comprise trade and other payables and borrowings

The fair vaiue of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables 15 not
matenally different from therr carrying value

The following table shows the fair value of borrowings, including therr value in the fair value hierarchy

Fair value 31 March 31 March 1 Apnl 2014

fararchy 2016 2015
£'000 £000 £000
Senmor term notes Leval 3 187,735 192,274 44,232
Fixed rate loan notes Level 3 122,845 160,048 133,080
Shareholder loan notes Level 3 309,465 278,317 231,437
Connected party loan 1 Level 3 90,4B6 82,848 225,035
Connected party loan 2 Level 3 - 12,566 78,258
Loan from parent entity Level 3 156,242 142,561 144,420
845,872 868,814 857,472
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ral Non-controlling interests

Non- Fotal
controlling
. interasts
£'000 £'000
At 1 Apnl 2015 1,180 1,180
Share of profit after taxation for the year 1177 1,177
Dividends paid to minonty interests (1,143} {1,143)
At 31 March 2018 1,214 1!214
Non- . Total
controliing
interests
£'000 £'000
At 1 Apnl 2014 660 960
Share of profit after taxation for the year 1,107 1,107
Purchase of minonty interasts (69) (69)
Increase in minonty nterests 378 376
Dividends paid to munority interests {1,194) {1 184)
At 31 March 2015 1,180 1,180
22. Commitments and contingencies
The Group’'s commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are set out below
31 March 31 March
2018 2015
£'000 £'000
Land and buildings
Within one year 4,242 4,470
Betwaen two and five years 11,538 15,776
After five years 8,663 8,562
24,341 28,808
31 March 31 March
2018 2015
£000 £'000
Motor vehicies end equipment
Wwithin ona year 987 1,253
Betwaan two and five years 956 1,407
After five years - -
1,942 2 660
The Group's future minimum lease rental income expected to be received under non-cancallable operating leases
is as follows
31 March 31 March
2016 2015
£000 £000
Lease rental income
Within one year 28 -
Betwaen two and five years 384 -
After five years 143 -
823 -

Tha Group leases property, motor vehicles and office equipment The Group's leases do not Include any matenal

contingent laase payments, purchase ophong, escalation clauses of restnchion clauses
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23. Related party transactions

During the year tha Group traded with Its associatas, joint ventures and with entiies with common control to the
Group All fransactions were n the normal course of business and pricad under normal trade tems

The Company's immediate parent company is Globai Radio Group Limited {Jersey) Detalls of loans outstanding
with this entity are given in note 18

Digitzl Radio Group {London) Limited operates a digital radio multplex and during the year the Group paid
£105,000 (2015 £133,000) to this company for transmission services The Group had an cutstanding balance of
£nil at 31 March 2016 (2015 £9,000)

Radiwo Centre Limited 1s a trade body promoting commercial radio to advertisers Radio Centre Limited is funded
by levies paid by the commercial radio industry in the UK based on volumes of advertising revenue Cunng the
year the Group paid £1,371,000 (2015 £1,746,000) in levies to Radio Cenire Limitad and had an outstending
balance of £ni at 31 March 2016 (2015 £nil)

CE Digitel operates throe local digital radio multiplexes Duning the year the Group paid £2,755,000 (2015
£2 850,000) to CE Digital in respect of transmission services and received £nil (2015 £100,000) in respect of
iegal expertise and engineering time The Group had an outstanding balance of £nil at 31 March 2016 (2015
£633,000)

Now Digital East Midlands Limited, an associate of the Group, operates digital radio multplexes and &unng the
year the Company paid £653,000 (2015 £765,000) to this company for transmission services The Group had an
outstanding creditor of £ml at 31 March 2016 (2015 £65,000)

During the year a number of Directors were granted loans in relation to a cash-setilad share based payment
arrangement The loans are due for repayment on the setflemant of the schema (see note 25) The loan balances
totalled £374,770 at 31 March 2016 (2015 £374,770)

Dunng the year the Group had a number of recharge accounts with vanous members of the Global Entertainment
and Talent Group, with whom the Group shares a Director As at 31 March 2016 the outstanding debtor was
£683,000 (2015 £1,848,000) This has been fully repaid since the year end Dunng the year the Group charged
the Global Entertainment and Talent Group £40,000 (2015 £40,000) in respect of occupancy, and Giobal
Entertainment and Talent Group charged the Group £60,000 (2015 £60,000} in respect of consultancy

The Group considers the directors to be key management personnel Related party transactions with key
management parsonnel have baen disclosed i note 6

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no other related party transactions dunng the year
24. Business combinations

On 8 Qctober 2015 the Group acquired the entire share capitat (and 100% of the voting nights) of Juics Holdco
Limited through 1its subsidiary Glabal Radio Heldings Limited Juice Holdco Limited was a radio broadcaster in
Livarpool

The primary reason for the acquisition was the purchase of a radio icence, shown below In intangibtes, to expand
the Group's Capital FM radio station to the Liverpool area The goodwili has been allocated to the Commerciat
Radio Broadcasting cash genarating urit None of the purchased goodwill 1s deductible for tax purposes

The main factor Isading to the recognition of goodwill was the expected additional adverising revenue and the
expected operational effictencies through aconomies of scale ;

The details of the fair value of identifiable assets and labilities acquired, purchase consideration and goodwili are
as follows

Fair value
£'000
intangible assets 11,556
Defarrad tax asset - 43
Trade and other receivables 335
Cash 595
Trade and other payables {5,373)
Provisions {26)
Deferred tax liability {2,081}
Net assets acquirad 5,049
Goodwill 371
Total conslderation 5,420
Satlsfled by 5,420
Cash 5,420
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24 Business combinations (continued)

There were far value adjustments to property, plant and equipment (decrease of £199,000) to wnte off assets
which had no vaiue to the Group, to intangible assets (an increase of £356,000 to the acquired radio hcence), to
recognise a deferred tax assel (E43.000) and to recogrise a deferred tax fabity {£64,000) for the acquired
mtangible assets

Tha total consideration was paid in full on the acquisition of Juice Holdco Limited and there was no deferred
consideration in relation to the transaction

Acquisition related costs of £472,000 have been charged to admmistration expenses in the Income Statement for
the year ended 31 March 2016

Since the acquisihon date Juice Holdco Limited has contributed E1,497.000 to the Group revenue If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2015 the contnbution to Group revenue would have been £2,387,000.

25 Share-based payments
The Group operates cash-settled share-based payment arrangements as follows
The Growth Shares Scheme {“the Scheme”)

On 30 January 2015, a number of directors acquirad C, D, E and F shares in GRHL, for which the directors paid
unrestricted market value The G, D, E and F shares are subject to a put and call option structure whereby the
directors may sell the shares to GRHL, or GRHL may acquire the shares from the dlrectors for cash, within
various 80 day windows between on 1 August 2017 and 30 September 2025 The value at which the shares can
be bought or sold shall ba determined by a formula based an the growth in value of the shares over a cartairy
minimum threshold value The shares provide the holder with an interest in the growth of the busingss beyond
that thrashold, which has been set at 20% above the original value

The number of C,D, E and F shares issued in 2015 and outstanding at 31 March 2016 was 375,085 (31 March
2015 375085) -

The EBITDA used to determine the vaiue of the C.D E and F Shares will be the EBITDA for the year ended
immediately before the data of disposal

Share-baged payment expanso
The charge recognised in the Incomse Statement in respect of the Scheme was £5,499,000 (2015 £3,666,000)
Share-based payment liability

The Scheme requires the Group to pay the intrmsic value of these share-based payments to the employee at the
date of exercise The liability 1z re-valued at each reporting date and settiement date with any changes to fair
value being recognised in the profit and loss account, The Group has recorded labliities in respect of unvested
grants of £9,165,000 (2015 £3,666,000)

26 Deflned banefit pansion schemes

The Group operates three pension schemes on behalf of its employees The Gicbal Radio Group Personat
Pension Plan {"GRGPFPP") 1s a defined contnbutian scheme

All current employees are eligible to join the GRGPPP, which new employeas are enrofled in automatically when
they bagin employmaent with the Group At 31 March 2018 1,219 (2015 1,330) employaes were active membars
of this scheme The Group makes age-related employer contnbutions to the scheme

The Capital Radio pic Pension and Assurance Scheme ("CRPPAS™ and the Midiands Radio Group Persion
Scheme ("MRGPS") are contributory defined benefit schemes Both defined benefit schemes were closed to new
employees from 31 March 1885 At 31 March 2016, the MRGPS had 7 (2015 7) active members and the
CRPPAS had 4 (2015 4) active members

The pension cost charge for the year represents contrnbutions payable by the Group to the schemes and
amounted to £1,805,000 (2015 £1,415,000)

Contributions amounting ta £289.000 (215 £260,000) were payable to the schomes at the end of the financiat
year and are included n other creddors

The actual reiurn on the two defined benefit psnsion schemes assels over the penod from 1 Aprl 2015 to 31
March 2016 was a loss of £221,000 for MRGPS and £2,716,000 for CRPPAS (loss for the penod from 1 Apni
2014 to 31 March 2015 was £2,523,000 and £2,367,000 respectvely)

The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption 1s assessed by considenng the current level of
ratums on nsk-free investments (pnmanly government bonds) and the expectations for the nisk premium of each
asset class The expected return for each asset class is then weighted based on the assst allocation to deveiop
the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio
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The amounts recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position ate as follows

31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£900 £'000 £'000
Present value of funded obligations (36.867) (40,808) (33,508)
Farr value of scheme assets 39,391 45,240 40,078
Surplus In scheme 3!524 4,432 8.570
The amounts recogrused in the consolidated Income Statement are as follows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000
Current service cost (187) (143) 127)
Interest on obhgaton {1,403) {1,550} {1,525}
Expected return on scheme assets 1,667 1,858 1,818
Total (33) 165 166
Actual return on scheme assets (2,927) 5,380 1,499
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation ware as foliows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£000 £'000 £000
Opening defined benefit obiigation 40,308 33,508 32,692
Cumrent service cost 187 143 127
Interest cost 1,402 1,550 1,625
Caoninbutions by scheme participants 17 18 (52)
Actuana! {gains)/losses {1,604) 8,181 585
Benefits paid . {4,943) (572) (1,369)
35,867 40,808 33,508
Changes in the far value of scheme assets were as follows
31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014
£'000 £'000 £'000
Opening fair value of scheme assats 48,240 40,078 37,438
Expected return on assets 1,667 1,858 1,818
Actuarial (losses)gains {2,739} 3,532 (319}
Contnbutions by employer 333 438 2622
Contnbutions by scheme participants 24 25 24
Bensfits paid {4,943) (572) {1,369)
Expenses paid by scheme (81} {118} (136}
35,31 45240 40,078

The total amount recognised in the Group Statemant of Comprehensive Income In respect of actuanal losses on
assets s £2,739,000 (2016 gain of £3,532,000) and the amount recognised for actuanal gaing on liabiittes 18

£1,604,000 (2015 loss of £6,161,000}

The two schemes are fully funded by the Group and the scheme members who contribute a percentage of salary
The funding requirements are based on the pension fund's actuanal measurement framework set out in the

funding policies of the plan

The Group expects to contribute £333,000 to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2017 (2016 £438,000)
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The major categones of scheme assels as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows

31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 2015 2014
Equies 39.05% 53 55% 54 93%
Bondg 32 0% 3223% 30 94%
Diversified growth funds 28 26% 13 78% 14 13%

Principal actuanial assumptions at the reporing dates ware {expressed as waighted averages)

31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 2015 2014
Discount rate IT0% 350% 4 85%
Future salary increases 310% 310% 3 45%
Future pension Increases 3 30% 3 30% 3 48%
Inflation assumption 2 85% 310% 3 45%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowanca for future improvements in mortality rates

The assumed life expectations on retrement age 65 are

31 March 31 March 31 March

206 2015 2015
Number Number Number
Retiring today ) '
Males 275 224 222
Females 295 24 4 24 4
Retiring In 20 yoars
Males 294 292 285
Females 315 313 311

Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 2015 2014 2013
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Defined benefit obligation (35,867) (40,808) {33,508) (32,692)
Scheme assets 39,391 44,942 39 905 37,438
3,624 4,134 %3 87 4,746
Expenence adustments on scheme liabilties 1,604 {8,161} (5186) (2,828)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets {2,739) 3383 (338) 2702

Under 1AS 19 both schemes show a surplus In accordance with 1AS 19, the Group has recognised an asset on
the Statement of Finanaal Position in relation to the surpius in the schemes because the Group has an
unconditional ngnt to reatisa the surpius dunng the plan or when the plan 15 settled

The Group 1s exposed to a number of risks relabing to the defined benefit schemas (the “schemes”) including
assumptions not being borme out in practice The most siggnificant nisks are as follows
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Asset volatility

Thera is a nsk that a fall n asset values s not matched by correspanding reduction in the value placed on the
schemes The schemes hold a proportion of growth assets, which are expected to outperform corporate or
government bond yields in the long term, but gives exposure to volatilty and risk in the short-term

Change in bond yields

A decrease in carporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme's liabilites, although this will be
partally offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s corporate bond holdings

Inftation risk

The majority of the scheme's habiities are linked 1o inflation where higher inflation will lead to higher scheme
habilites Some of the scheme assets are either unatfected by inftation ar loosely correlated wath inflation (eg,
growth assets), meanung that an increase in inflaton will generally increase scheme habilities

Life expectancy

An increase m life expectancy will Yead to an increased value being placed on the scheme's habiities Future
maortality rales cannot be predicted with cartainty

Actuarlal assumption sensitivity

The discount rate 1s set by reference to market conditions at the reporting date, and can vary significantly between
periods The earnings increases are linked to inflation and so set by reference to market conditions at the
raporting date The mortality assumptions used are set by considaring the expenience of the scheme’s members,
and by making an atlowance for possible future improvemants i longavity. Mortatity assumptions are dificuilt to
set accurately, and forecasting rates of future mortality improvement i1s inewitably speculative

Actuarial assumption sensitivity

The discount rate, earnings increeses and inflation rates are sel by reference to market conditions at the reporting
date, and can vary significantly betwsen perods

A decraase n the dscount rate by 0 1% will increase the scheme's lrabiities by £667,000
An increase in inflation and salary growth assumptions by 0 1% will increese the scheme’s liabilities by £256,000
27. Note supporting Statement of Cash Flows

Significant non cash transactions in the year in respect of financing acivities compnsed unpaid interest which was
capitalised into borrowings of £61,510,000 (2015 £82,896,000) and £49,167,980 of loans were converied to share
capital

28 Immediate and ultimate parent Company

In the opinion of the directors the Company's immediate and ulimate controlling Company i1s Glabal Radio Group
i.imited, a company incorporated in Jersay

The largest and smallest Group in which the results of the Company are consolidated rs that headed by Global
Radio Group Limited

29 Guarantees, financlal commitments and contingent liabilitios )
Guarantees

The Company will guarantes the debts and liabilibes of certain UK subsidianes (as asterigked in note 33) at the
reporting date 1 accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 The Company has assessed the
probabiiity of loss under these guarantses as remote

Security

The assets of the Group are pledged to thelr bankers as securty against loans by way of a floating charge aover
the assets

VAT Group

The Company 13 & member of a group for VAT for group purposes resulting in a joint and several liability for
amounts owing by other Group companies fir unpaid VAT

Financlal commitments
The Group has entered into agreements with transmission supply companies and digital multiplex operators for the

transmisston of its radio stations for periods up to 2022 at competitive pnces and to ensure supply At the year end
tha commitments to purchase space on transmitters was £80,053,000 (2015 £121,480,000)
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ac First time adoption of IFRS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2016, are the first the Group has prepared in accordance
with IFRS For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group prepared its financial
statements i accordance with UK GAAP

The date of transition to IFRS (the “transiticn date") was 1 Apnl 2014

The accounting policies descrbed 1n note 1 were applied when preparing the opening IFRS Group Statement of
Financial Posiion at the transiion date and the Group Income Statement, Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Group Statement of Financial Posiion, Group Statement of Changes in Equity and Group Statement of
Cash Flows from tha transition date to 31 March 2018

This note axplains the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its UK GAAP Group Balance Sheet
(1o IFRS Group Statement of Financial Positon) as at 1 Apnl 2014 and 31 March 2015 and UK GAAP Group Profit
and Loss Account (to IFRS Group Income Statement) and Group Statement of Recognised Gans and Losses (to
IFRS Group Statement of Other Comprehensive Income} for the year ended 31 March 2015.

In preparing its opening IFRS Group Statement of Financial Position and adjusting amounts reported previously in
accordance with UK GAAP the Group has epplied IFRS 1 which contains a number of voluntary exemptions and
mandatory excephons from the requiramsnt to apply IFRS retrospectively

Exceptions and Exemptions used during transition to IFRS

The Group has applied the mandatory exceplion required by IFRS 1 in the convarsion from UK GAAP to IFRS
which requires that hindsight 1s not used to create of rovise estmates The estimates previously made by the
Company under UK GAAP were not revised for the application of IFRS except where necessary to refiect any
difference in accounting policies ’

Adjustments Mada In Connection with transition to IFRS

The most significant impacts of the adoption of IFRS on the Group's previously raported financial information are
as follows

+* Under UK GAAP borrowings wera vaiued at the nominal value of the loan and then at amortised
cost Under IFRS borrowings are nihally valued at the fair value of the ioan and then amortised cost

» The reclassification of capitalised software costs from tangible fixed assats to mtangible assets

» Under UK GAAP the surpius on the defined benefit schemes was nol recognised on the balance
sheet Under IFRS the surplus on the schemes is recognised on the Statement of Financial Position

impact on the cash flaw statements

Tho Group has made a number of reclassifications to the vaiues reported under UK GAAP v order to present its
Statement of Cash Flows in accordance with IFRS, These reciassification adjustments have no significant impact
on the results presented for each type of the Group's activitias

The transstion from UK GAAP to IFRS has not had a material impact on the Statement of Cash Flows
The following tables give the reconciliations of

s UK GAAP Group Balance Shest to IFRS Group Statement of Financial Pogition at 1 Apri 2014 and
31 March 2015

» UK GAAP Group Profit and Loss account to IFRS Group Income Statement for the year ended 31
March 2015

* UK GAAP Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses to IFRS Group Statement of
Other Comprehenstive Inceme for the year ended 31 March 2015
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® Borrowmgs ~ Under UK GAAP borrowings were valued at the nominal value of the foan and then at amorised
cost Under IFRS horrowings are imitially valued at the fair value of the loan and then amortised cost

1 Software costs - Under UK GAAP capitalised software costs were classified as part of the associated fixed
assets Under IFRS capitalised software costs are classtfied as intangible assets

& Radio hcences - Under UK GAAP radio licences were classified as tangble assets Under IFRS radic licences
are classified as intangible assets

0 Amortisation of goodwil! — Under UK GAAP goodwill was amortised over 20 years Under IFRS goodwill is not
amoriised

® [ pase Incentives - Undar UK GAAP lease incentives are amortrsed over the period of associated benefit being
the shorter of the penod of the lease or the penod to the next rent review date Under IFRS lease incentives are
amortised over the term of the lease

" Loan transaction costs — Under UK GAAP loan transaction costs are recorded as a debtor and then amortised
pver the penod of the loan Under IFRS the toan transacton costs are netted off the value of the loan and then
amortised over the period of the loan

@ Surplus on the defined benefit schame — Under UK GAAP the surpius on the defined benefit scheme was not
recorded on the balance sheet Under IFRS the surplus on the defined beneafit schema is recorded as an asset on
the statement of financial position, with the movement being taken to the incoms statement and the statement of
comprehansive iIncome
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Company Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2016

Company number 06261684
31 March 31 March
20186 2015
Note £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Investments 33 92,440 92,440
92,440 92,440
Current asseots
Debtors 34 372,613 373,300
Cash 18 9
377,631 373,308
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 35 {46,079) (40,323)
Net current assots 331,452 332,986
Total assets less current llabilities 423,892 425,426
Credltors amounts falling due after more than one year 36 {820,872) (831,049)
Net llabllities {3986,980) (405,623)
Equity
Share capital a7 48,167 -
Retained deficit {448,147} {405,823)

(398,980) (405,623)

The notas on pages 46 to 55 form part of these financial statements

The financlal statements were approved and authonged for 1ssue by the board of directors on 28 July 2016 and
were signed on its behalf by

&) S

D D Singer
Director
29 July 2016
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Share capital Retalnad Total equity
deflclt -
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 Aprll 2015 - (405,623) (405,623)
Loss for the year - (40,524) {40,524)
Issued in the year 49,167 - 42,167
At 31 March 2016 468,167 (446,147) {396, 080)

The notes on pages 48 to 55 form part of thase financial statements
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

31.  Accounting policies for the Company financial statements
a) Reporting entity

This 1s Global Limited (the "Company™) 18 incorporated and dom:ciled i1 the United Kingdom
The Company's principal activity was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdam

The Company financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 29 July 2016
b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have baen prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financlal Reporting Requiremants (‘FRS 1007} and Fmancial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework ("FRS 1017} and the Companies Act 2006

Asg permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2008 information about the Company's employse numbers
and costs have not been presented

As permitted by Saction 408(3) of the Companies Act 2008, the Company's Profit and Loss Account and
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and related notes have not been presentad as the Company's Group
Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2008

¢) Functional and presentational currency

These financal statements are presented m pounds Stering (£), which 15 the Company's functional and
presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histonical cost basis, and Eare In accordance with the
Comparies Act 20086

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all penods presented in these financial
statements

For all penicds up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company prepared financial statements in
accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng Prnciples (‘UK GAAP") These financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with FRS
100 and FRS 101,

The Company's deemed transition date to FRS 100 and FRS 101 was 1 Apri 2014 This change i the basis of
preparation has materially altered the recognition and measurement requirements previously applisd in
accordance with UK GAAP Details of how the transition from UK GAAP to FRS 100 and FRS 101 has affected
the Company's reported position and performance are given in note 39 to the Company financial statements

In prepanng these financial statements the company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions
conferred by FRS 101 Therefore these financtai statements do not include

cartain comparative information as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS,

certain disclosures regarding the company's capital,

a Statement of Cash Flows,

the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted,

the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel, and

disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly owned members of the group headed by
This 1s Global Limited

. s+ @ = .

In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because
equivalent disclosures are included in the Group financial statements of This 1s Global Limited These financial
statements do not include certain disclosures n respact of

+  Financigl Instruments (other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments at fair vaiue),

+ Fair value measurement (other than certain disclosures required as a result of racording financial
instruments at fair value), and

= Impairment of assets




This is Global Limited
Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

31.  Accounting pohcies for the Company financial statements (continued)

e) Investments

invesiments are included in the Balance Sheet at cosl less amounts wiitten-off, representing impairment in value
Impaiment charges are recorded If events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable

f) Going concern

At the date of these accounts, the diractors have carried out a detailled and comprehensive review of the business
and its future prospects In particular they have compared the forecast future performance of the Company and
anticipated cash flows with the avallable working capital faciliies and covenants contained in the banking
arrangernents that form part of tne Company's current financing structure and, in the light of currant econome
conditions, have conswiered the abllity of the group to meet its obligations as they fall due In the optnion of the
directors, the Company are expectsd ta be able to continue trading within the current arrangements and
consequently the financial statements are presented on a going concermn basis

a) Accounting policies for the Company financial statements

The Company's accounting policias are the same as the Group's accounting policies, as detailed in note 1 to the
Group financia) statements, for the following

Company FRS 101 accounting policy Group IFRS accounting policy Note
New accounting standards New accounting standards 1g
Cntical accounting estimates and judgments Cntical accounting estimatas and judgments 1h
Debtors Trade and other receivables 1p
Cash Cash 1q
Share capital Share capital ir
Creditors Trade and other payables is
interest recavable and stmilar income Finance income and expense 1u
Interest payable and similar expense Finance incoime and expense 1u
Financial instruments Financial instruments 1w
Current and deferred tax Current and deferred tax Tw
Revenue recogmition Revenue recognition 1aa
Fair value measurement Fair value measurement tee

32 Directors
Information on Company’s directors 1s provided in note 6 ta the Group financial statements
33 Invastments

Investments 1n Total
subsidiary
companies
£'000 £'000
At 1 Apnii 2015 92,440 92,440
At 31 March 2016 92,440 2,440
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33 Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidianies, including subsidianes held by indirect hoiding companies, are

Name Country % Ownership
Amber Radio Limited Uruted Kingdom 100
Angels 1n Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Arrow Digital Limited United Kingdom 100
Atlantic Broadcasting Limited” Urited Kingdom 100
Beat FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Belfast Radio hmited United Kingdom 100
Border Limited Uniteg Kingdom 100
Bristol Broadcasting Company Limted United Kingdom 100
Bristol Radio Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Buzz FM Limited . United Kingdom 100
Cambndge and Newmarket FM Radio Lirmited United Kingdom 100
Capital ({CDWM) Limited United Kingdom 100
Capitai Gold Hampshire Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Kent Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Manchester Limited” United Kingdom 100
Capital Gold Sussex Limited Unmited Kingdom 100
Capital Interactive Limited United Kingdom 100
Capital Online Limited Unuted Kingdom 100
Capital Radio (London) Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Capital Radio investments Limited” United Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Limited Umted Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Group Linited Urited Kingdom 100
Capital Radio Restaurants Limited Umited ingdom 100
Capital Radio Trustee Limited Urited Kingdem 100
Capital Television Limited Unsted Kingdom 100
Capital Xtra Limited” United Kingdom 100
Castteform Limited United Kingdom 100
Centra} European Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Central Region News Limited United Kingdom 100
Champion FM Limited Umited Kingdom 100
Cheerdale Limited United Kingdom 100
Chili Radio Livmted* United Kingdom 100
Chiltern Radie Limited”™ United Kingdom 100
Choice FM London Limited United Kingdom 100
Chaice FM North London Limited United Kingdom 100
Classic FM BV Netherlands 100
Classic FM Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Core Digital Racho Limited United Kingdom 100
Cotswaold Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Deansgate 1001 Limited United Kingdom 100
Devonair Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Diamond FM Limited United Kingdom 4100
Digital News Network Limited United Kingdom 100
Digrtal Two Limited United Kingdom 100
DQ Radio Services Limited” Urited Kingdom 100
East Anglian Radio Limited Untted Kingdom 100
Ecast Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100
Essex Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Expressway Limited Umted Kingdom 100
Faze Three (East Midlands) Limited United Kingdom 100

*Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts and liabilites are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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33 Investments (continued)

The Company's subsiciaries, ncluding subsidianes hekd by in direct holding companies, are

Name Country % Dwnership
First Oxfordshire Radio Company Limited* United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Birmingham Limited* United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Manchester Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio North East Limited* United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Yorkshire Limited® United Kingdom 100
GCap FRB {No 1} Limited Unitedt Kingdom 100
GCap FRB (No 2) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Local Data Company Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (CRUD) Limited Uruted Kingdom 100
GCap Media (FPRL) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (The Jazz) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Gemim Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Glasgow Gold Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Madia Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Music Television Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Global Music TV Limitad United Kingdom 100
Global Radio (AM) Limited* Uruted Kingdom 100
Global Radio Acquisittons Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radic Digital Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radic Hampshire Limited* United Kingdom 100
Globa! Radio Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio London Limited” Untted Kingdom 100
Global Radio Media Management Limited* United Kingdom 100
Gicbal Radio Midlands Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radlo Publishing Limited* Urited Kingdom 100
Global Radio Services Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio UK Limited United Kingdom 100
GM Radio News (UK) Limited United Kingdom 55
GMG Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Greater Manchester Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR (Local Area) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR (Trustee Company) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR (West} Limited* Uruted Kingdom 100
GWR East Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100
GWR Group Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR Hungary (investments) Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR International Investments Limited United Kingdom 100
GWR International Limited Urited Kingdom 100
GWR New Zealand Licences Limited New Zealand 100
GWR New Zealand Limited New Zealand 100
GWR Radlo {South East) Limited™ United Kingdom 100
GWR Radia Limited United Kingdom 100
Harlow FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Healthbuild Limited Urited Kingdom 100
Heart 106 FM Limited United Kingdom 100
We the Unicorns Limited* Urited Kingdom 100

“Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at the

reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006




This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)

33 Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidianes, inciuding subsihanes held by i direct holding companies, are

Name Country % Ownershlp
Heart Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Heart TV Limited United Kingdom 100
Hereward Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Hit 40 UK Limited Umnited Kingdom 100
Hopstar Limited” United Kingdom 100
independent Radic News Limited United Kingdom 55
investors in Radio Limited Untted Kingdom 100
invicta Concens and Premotions Limited United Kingdom 100
racho Limited {United Kingdom 100
Jams of London Limited Unitea Kingdom 100
Juice Holdeo Limited” United Kingdom 100
Lantern Radio Limited United Kingdom 99
LBC 1152 Limiteg Uruted Kingdam 100
LBC Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Leicester Sound Limited” United Kingdom 100
Livetime Limited United Kingdom 100
London Broadcasting Company 1896 Limited Urated Kingdom 100
Love FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Marcher Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Mid Anglia Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Mwah Mwah Limited Urnited Kingdom 100
MXR Holdings Limited United Kingdom g8
MXR Limited United Kingdom 88
My Kinda Bath Limited Urited Kingdom 100
My Kinda Bones Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Shacks Limited United Kingdom 100
My Kinda Square Limited United Kingdom 100
Neal Street Blues Limited United Kingdom 100
Newsradio com Limited United Kingdom 100
North East News Limited United Kingdom 100
North East Radio Lumited United Kingdom 100
North ¥West News Limited Urited Kingdom 400
Now Digital (North Wales, Wirral and Cheshire) Limited United Kingdom 100
Ocean FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Opus Radio Sales Limited United Kingdom 100
Orchard FM Limited* United Kingdom 100
Orchard Media Lirnited United Kingdom 100
Qval (709) Lirited United Kingdom 100
Plymouth Sound Limited* United Kingdom 100
Power FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Prock Licence (NTLRSL) Limited United Kingdom 100 °
Radio Breeze AM Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Broadiand Limited* Uruted Kingdom 100
Radio Invicta Limited” United Kingdom 100
Radio Mercury Limited* uUnited Kingdom 100
Radio Onwell Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Runner Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio South Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Trent Liruted* Umited Kingdom 100
RAM FM Limited United Kingdom ~ 100

*Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's debts and liablites are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date n accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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33 Investmants (continuad)

The Company's subsidianes, including subsidiaries held by in direct holding companies, are

Name Country % Cwnership
Real and Smooth Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio (North East) Limiteg* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio (North West) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio {Scotland) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Reat Radio Limuted* United ¥ingdom 100
Rwera Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Rock Radio Limited Urnited Kingdom 100
Saxon Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1002 Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1003 Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1004 Limited United Kingdom 100
Smooth Drgitat Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Smocth Radio Investments Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio London Limited*® United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio Scotland Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio West Midlands Limited* United Kingdom 100
South Hams Radio Lumited United Kingdom 635
Southern Radio Group Limited* Umitad Kingdom 100
Southern Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Storm (GWR) Limited United Kingdom 100
Storm Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Suffolkk Graup Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Tainside Limited” United Kingdom 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Group Limited United Kingdem 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Limited*® United Kingdom 100
Thamesguote Limited* United Kingdom 100
The Arrow (Liverpool) Limited United Kingdorn 100
The Arrow (Manchester) Limited United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group (Investments) Limited* United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group {West Midlands) Limited United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
The Milton Keynes Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Northamptonshire Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Storm (Digtal Radio) Limited United Kingdom 100
T8 Holdings Limsted United Kingdom 100
Two Counhes Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Vibe FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Warnngton Runcorn Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
Waelovalocal com Limited” United Kingdom 100
West and South Yorkshire Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
West Country Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
West Midlands Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Waestward Radio Limited United Kingdtom 100
Westward Television Limited United Kingdom 100
Wiltshire Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
World Telewvision Productions Limited Uruted Kingdom 100
Xfm Limited” United Kingdom 100
Xfm Manchester Limited* United Kingdom 100
PopBuzz Limited*® United Kingdom 100

“Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee - Entity's dabts and habilittes are guaranteed by the Campany at the
reporting date in accordance with sechon 4794, of the Companies Act 2006
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34 Debtors
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
£'000 £000
Loans to subsidianes 367,313 255,420
Amounts owed by group undertakings 5,537 113,480
Deferred tax asset 4,663 4,390
377,513 373,300

35 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

£'000 E'00D

Bank loans and overdrafts 26,000 25,000
Accrued Interest 17,184 15,159
Amounts owad to group undertakings 3,886 164
46,079 40,323

36. Creditors- amounts falling due aftar more than one year

31 March 2018 31 March 2015

£'000 £'000

Bank loans 142,736 195,680
Other loans 878,137 635,365
820,872 831,049

a7 Share capital

31 March 31 March

2016 2015
E £
Issued, called up and fully pald
Ordinary shares of £4 49 166,981 1
49,166,981 1

During the year £49,166,980 of loans wera converted to 49,168,880 ordinary £1 shares which were 1ssued, called
up and fully paid

38 Related party transactions

As disclosed in note 23 and In accordance with the exemptions in FRS 101 the Company is not required to
disciose related party transactions with key management personnel or between members of the Group The
Company has not complsted any related party transactions with any other entittes or parties
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
39. First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2016, are the first the Company has prepared In
accordance with FRS 101 For penods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
prepared its financial statements 1n accordance with UK GAAP

The date of transition to FRS 101 was 1 Apni 2014 (the “transition date™)

The accounting policies descnbed in note 31 were applied when prepanng the opening FRS 101 Balance Sheet
at the transiton date and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet
and Statement of Changes in Equity from the transdion date to 31 March 2016

This note explains the pnncipal adjustments made by the Company n restating its UK GAAP financial resufts 1o
FRS 101 as at 1 Apnl 2014 and 31 March 2015 and for the year ended 31 March 2015

This note explains the pnncipal adjustments made by the Company In restating its UK GAAP Balance Shaet as at
1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015, UK GAAP Profit and Loss Account and Statement of Recognised Gamns and
Losses (to FRS 101 Statement of Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended 31 March 2015

In preparing its opening FRS 101 Balance Shest and adjusting amounts reported previously in accordance with
UK GAAP the Company has applied IFRS 1 which contains a number of voluntary exemptions and mandatery
excaptions from the requirement to apply IFRS retrospectively.

Exceaptions and Exemptions used during transition to IFRS

The Company has applied the mandatory exception required by IFRS 1 in the converston from UK GAAP to FRS
101 which requires that lindsight 1 not used to creats or revise estimates, The estimates previcusly made by the
Company under UK GAAP were not revised for the application of FRS 101 except where necessary to reflect any
difference 1n accounting poilcies

Adfjustments Made In Connection with transition to FRS 101

The most significant impacts of the adoption of IFRS on the Group's previously reported financial information are
as follows

¢ Under FRS 101 ioans are valued at far value on inital recognition, under UK GAAP loans were
valued at nomine! value

+ Undar FRS 101 loans to subsidianes are classified as creditors, under UK GAAP they were
classified as an investment

* Under FRS 101 loan transaction costs are netted off the loan which they relate to, under UK GAAP
they wera recognised as a debtor

Tha followsng tables give the reconaihations of

» UK GAAP Balanca Shest to FRS 101 Balance Shaet at 1 Apnil 2014

+ UK GAAP Balance Sheet to FRS 101 Balance Sheet at 31 March 2015

s UK GAAP Profit and Loss Account to FRS 101 Profit and Loss accounting for the year ended 31
March 2015

» UK GAAP Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses to FRS 101 Statement of Cther
Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2015
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This is Global Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements (continued)
3% First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101 (continued)

Rocassification of loans gs ™ Loaa conta ™
UK QARP to subaidinries 1o FRS 10t
borrowdnos !
41 £o0d (4] 0o £000
Fined angete
investments 40,380 & - - £0 04D
T (285 4211 - - X Y]
Current sesste
Gash - . . -
Dainrs 2177 298420 b1} 344,256
89573 420 £ [el ) 344
CredXors. smounts hilng dus withia one year (42184 . - 4z 184)
Mot currem asssls AT 412 255 420 " {Tem 302 085
Total akkais lons cument fubilitien WITT2 " 768) F63 058
Creditors smountt fsiing dus afar more then One year (razn (8 581) 789 (788 120)
tlat tabitities —BEETE = 52 LIELLDY
Equity
Share capitat - -
Retanad dofick !ﬁ - - @
of
Raciassificsiion of loans conts
UK QAAP to w FRS 11
B dorrowlnas
£ 000 £000 oo 2200 roba
Fiusd annsis
Hyapmants 347,000 2554200 - - X -
J47.860 {2E8ATH - T2 840
Current aspats
Ostton 114 068 288 420 4380 11478} 373 300
Cash ] - - B
w78 255,420 43K e 373300
Credhors- smeunts failing dus within cor your 4032y - - - (40 323)
F cutrent assetls Yield 25% 470 @390 (1 478) 3A2 068
Totsl asasts lass current labliities 422612 - 4 380 {1478} 425428
Gradieds smounis failing due after more than oive year (804 119 . (28 408) 1478 (BT Oual)
Net lablives ::EE&_ - m@j S M
Equity
Snare capiis) . -
Reialned defich ﬁ_}ﬁq E:Mg - im%
Profit snd loss sccoum for year enided 39 March 2018 —
slion of ings ™  Loan transaction
loans o cowte '
UK GAAR subsidiarige 1O FR3 101
borrowinge #
£000 £400 £ 000 | o] £'000
Tumover - - - - -
Opeorsting charges . . - - -
Operaling loss - - - - .
Divdends recaved 26725 - - 20726
Finance Incoma 20 408 + . 20 488
Finance axpanse (88 B851) - {2t 814) (91 766)
Loss on ordinary activitias before taxation (72 ¥28) . {21 514) - {44 542)
Tax on loas oh ardinery activiien 9 B48 - 43569 - 14013
Loss for the financial yasr {13 m - {1 1@2 - |3o 527}
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39. First adoption of FRS 100 and FRS 101 (continued)

Raconcillation of the Compary of comprahensive iIncome for the yuar snded 31 March 2018
Reciassification of ge ™ LOWn L A
tonns to coats ™
i subskdlaries to FR3 101
borrowinas

£000 €000
Losa for the financlal yeer {13 082) (17 #45) - {30,527)
items that may be roclassified to protit or
loss
Othar comprehgnsive INcomes: - . . -
INcreate N PENSION TPIUS KL TECOGMESH " - -
Other tomprehens/ve loss for the yaer, nst of
tax 113,082) - {17,445} [30.527)
Tolxl comprehsnalve ioss tor e yssr “w_ - m__ga lm 27.

® Reclassificatron of loans to subsidianes to borrowings — Under UK GAAP loans to subsidianes were recorded as
an investment. Under FRS 101 loans due from suhsidianes are recorded as a dobtor

) Borrowings — Under UK GAAP borrowings were valued at the nominal value of the loan and then at emorhsed
cost. Under FRS 101 bormowings are initially valued at the fair value of the lcan and then amortised cost

© | oan transaction costs — Under UK GAAP loan transaction costs are recorded as a debtor and then amorhised
over the period of the loan Under FRS 101 the ioan transaction costs are netted off the value of the loan and then

amortised ovar tha penod of the loan
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